
New York State Office of Victim Services 

 
Attorney Services RFA 

 
Questions & Answers 

 

 

The responses to questions included herein are the official responses by the State to questions 

submitted by potential applicants and are hereby incorporated in the Attorney Services RFA issued on 
June 8, 2018. In the event of any conflict between the RFA and these responses, the requirements or 
information contained in these responses will prevail. 
 

 

Q1) Can you give guidance on whether the RFA mention about has budget 
restrictions/limitations, including caps on NPS costs, caps on indirect charges, caps on 
supervisory or administrative personnel, required salary or number of attorneys, etc.? 

 
A1) All costs must be VOCA allowable. There are no NPS caps on costs, per page 10, under 

6. Budget Narrative, applicants must provide a written justification for each budgeted 
item.  

 
Q2) There does not seem to be a template for the Application Checklist (Attachment 2) 
 
A2) The Application Checklist may be found on the last page of the RFA document in the 

Grants Gateway. 
 
Q3) Can the required 20% match for non-federal sources come from the subcontracting 

agency?  For example, if OVS-funded agency is subcontracting for attorney services from 
legal services agency, can the legal services agency provide the 20% match? 

 
A3) Any match must be reported as coming from the OVS funded grantee. Grantees are 

allowed to use match as a result of a sub-contracting agency; however, the match must 
be reported by the OVS-funded agency.  

 
Q4) In addition to funding for Attorneys, can funding be used to pay for a paralegal position 

whose responsibilities include conducting legal intake/screening for crime victims, and 
assisting and supporting VOCA-funded attorneys on legal cases for crime victims? 

 
A4) Yes, funding can be used for a new paralegal position as long as an attorney is also 

funded under this grant. 
 
Q5) May we request enough funding to fully fund a new attorney, exceeding the average 

grant of $250,000 in order to do so, and then use supervisory staff to count toward our 
match? (p. 19, section 6.1) 

 
A5) Yes, the total requested amount can exceed $250,000. There is no cap on requested 

grant amounts for each contract year or in total. Supervisory staff may also be used as 
part of the total award and/or may be used as match. For additional questions 
regarding match, please see page 19.  



 
 
Q6) What happens if the new attorney that we hire leaves at some point during the 

contract—may we replace him/her with an existing, trained attorney? Does your answer 
depend on whether or not overall staffing levels remain the same such that no capacity is 
lost? 

 
A6) Yes, as long as the vacated position is back-filled.  
 
Q7) Section 2.2 Part A, p.6 CVLN: one of the duties of the new attorney will be serving as a 

referral partner for the new CVLN. The RFP states that this network website is being 
piloted in western NY will be rolled out to the rest of the state outside of NYC in 2019. 
Can you tell us when you expect it to be available in NYC? 

 
A7) There is no schedule at this time.  
 
Q8) Section 3.4, Project budget p. 10: We are instructed to explain any budget changes from 

Year 1. May these changes include annual increases in staff salaries as per our step rates? 
 
A8) Yes, reasonable pay increases are allowable.  
 
Q9) Do non-profit organizations applying for this grant have to be an attorney's office to be 

eligible? Or we can just hire attorneys. 
 
A9) No, you do not have to be an attorney’s office. As stated on page 5, section 2.1 OVS 

invites applications for financial assistance to fund new attorney(s) position for 
currently funded OVS VAPs or CACs.  

 
Q10) Would you kindly provide clarification on the following statement that is posted within 

the funding opportunity announcement? 
“Anticipated Amount of Award(s) $250,000.00” 
 Is the $250,000 anticipated award amount per year or over the 5-year term? 
 

A10) See A5.  
 
Q11) The application instructions indicate, that under “Proposed Services and 

Implementation” in the Work Plan section, that applicants are to describe the services 
and activities to be undertaken and provide justification for staff and resources.  It is not 
clear if a separate narrative is to be submitted or if this section will be purely scored from 
the Program Work Plan.  If a separate narrative is required, would it be correct to assume 
that it would be uploaded into the Grantee Document Folder as there is not a fillable 
narrative option in the Work Plan Overview section of the Grants Gateway application? 

   
A11) The proposed services and implementation should be placed in the project summary 

portion of the workplan.  
 
Q12) If a VAP contracts with us, can we use our Legal Services Corporation (LSC) funds to help 

meet the match requirement? Generally, LSC funds are considered non-federal for 
purposes of match. 

 



A12) LSC funds may be used for match. Additional guidelines for match may be found on page 
19 of the RFA. 

 
Q13) Can multiple VAPs submit a joint application? 
 
A13) No. 
 
Q14) If a VAP hires an attorney in house, Sections 495 and 496 of the Judiciary Law require an 

annual report to be filed with the Appellate Division – can VAPs be made aware of this so 
they comply with the statute? Some of these VAPs are small rural programs that have never 
had an in-house attorney before, and probably will not be aware of this. 

 
A14) Applicants should be aware of, and compliant with, any requirements of the Judiciary Law and 

rules of the Office of Court Administration.   

Q15) Should applicants who hold multiple VAP/CAC contracts submit a single application for all 
proposed attorney’s agency-wide, or should we submit multiple individual applications for 
each contract we hold with program-specific requests? 

 
• If applicants should submit one single request for an entire agency, how would OVS like 

us to document their distinct focuses, activities, locations, etc.? 
 

A15) Applicants are encouraged to submit one application per section 2.3. Attorney activities, 
focus and location should be outlined in the budget and narrative. 

Q16) Is there any cap on the number of attorneys we can propose relative to our 
contracts/contract size? 

A16) No, please reference section 3.4 6. Budget Narrative on page 10, “applications must 
provide a written justification for each budgeted item for which grant support is requested”.  

Q17) Is there an expected grant amount?  A maximum? (pg. 16) 

A17. There is no expected grant amount. The total available funding for the entire (5) year 
period shall not exceed $250,000,000. Please reference section 3.4 6. Budget Narrative on 
page 10, “applications must provide a written justification for each budgeted item for which 
grant support is requested”. 

Q18) Can the one FTE attorney be two half-time attorneys newly assigned to grant work? (pg. 
11) 

A18) Yes, two half-time attorneys may be hired but the positions should be listed separately 
on both the budget and position description form.  Note that per page 16, section 5.6.1, this 
must be for new positions. Funds cannot support existing staff “newly assigned to grant 
work” unless the positions they vacate are back-filled. 

Q19) Would OVS welcome letters of support? 

A19) No. 

Q20) Can Legal Services Corporation funds be used as match? (pg. 19) 

A20) See A12.  



Q21) We downloaded the pre-submission documents from Grants Gateway.  The Budget 
Template form from Grants Gateway states “Year 2”?  Is that a typo?  Can we use this form 
anyway, or will a corrected version be uploaded onto Grants Gateway? 

A21) Proposed budgets for years 2 through 5 should be entered in the Pre-submission upload 
file “Futurefunding.xls”. There are tabs for each year located at the bottom of the spreadsheet. 

Q22) How many trainings the attorney will be required to attend? 
Where the trainings will be? 
What the daily cost of hotel accommodations will be? 
Whether other travel for non-mandated training can be included? 

 
A22) Per section 2.2, section B, page 7, applicants must certify that within the first year of hiring an 

attorney(s) under a contract resulting from this solicitation the attorney(s) will have completed 15 

hours of training related to holistic Victim Law and some portion of that training must be devoted to 

the neuroscience of trauma and its implication for legal representation of crime victims. This may take 

more than one training if the program chooses to attend trainings of their choice. As stated in the RFA, 

the budget for the proposal under this solicitation may include a request for funding to support this 

training fully, including all associated travel costs.  Should the applicant secure legal services via a 

contract, rather than hire a staff attorney(s), the contractors must receive this training within a year of 

contract execution.   The location of the OVS sponsored training has not yet been determined, and 

because applicants may elect to attend other suitable training of their choice with OVS approval, 

applicants are advised to include an estimated amount for costs in their budgets to cover these 

expenses. 

 
Q23) Is 24 hour crisis hotline coverage by volunteers considered an acceptable matching activity under  
this RFA? 

 
A23) No. 

 
Q24) Do M/WBE provisions apply under the RFA? 

 
A24) No. 

 
Q25) When contracting for Attorney services, is a flat retainer option for the given budget year 
acceptable, or does billable time need to be specific, and documented with the number of hours of 
service rendered along with the rate per hour? 

 
A25) For contracting for attorney services, either method is acceptable.  

 
Q26) Can advocates contact the attorney for legal advocacy as an allowable activity under this RFA? 

 
A26) Yes . 

 
Q27) Can the attorney provide legal advocacy trainings to advocates under this RFA? 

 
A27) Attorney’s may provide legal information however trainings are not allowable.  

 
Q28) Is a divorce an allowable legal service an attorney can provide under this RFA?  



 
A28) Yes, VOCA Final Rule 94.119F allows for legal assistance services on non-emergency and 
emergency basis where reasonable and where the need for such services arises as a direct result of 
the victimization, such as non-tort, civil legal services which include but are not limited to assistance 
in divorce, and child custody and support proceedings.  

 
Q29) Can the attorney be used for legal services to secondary victims under this RFA? 

 
A29) Yes. 

 
Q30) Are there any age restrictions to receiving legal services under this RFA? 
 
A30) No. 

 
Q31) Are attorney fees the last payer of resort under this RFA?  In other words, will OVS allow victims to 
choose an attorney funded through this grant rather than the Court appointed attorney, that is, if the 
preferred attorney is allowed by the Court? 
 
A31) Grants are not the payer of last resort.  
 
Q32) Do sub-contracts for attorney services need to be prior approved by OVS before they are 
executed? 
 
A32) No. 
 
 Q33) Is reporting (fiscal and program) under this RFA/grant monthly or quarterly? 
 
A33) Quarterly. 
 
Q34) In Attorney Services RFA “Supervisory Support” – Can this be hiring an ADA Supervisor? One with 
more experience and higher rate of pay than a new incoming ADA? 
 
A34) Yes. 
 
Q35) Where will the CVLN meetings be? 
How many meetings during the first year? 
How many meetings in each year thereafter? 
How much will the daily cost of hotel stays be? 
Are both the new attorney and supervisor be required to attend these trainings? 
 
A35) Supervisors would not be required to attend. It is not anticipated that there will be many in-
person meetings. It is likely that most will be via webinar. How frequently these will be held is 
unknown at this time but it would be reasonable to estimate quarterly. Reasonable planning would 
allow for one annual in-person meeting in an upstate NY region.  
 
 Q36) If a lead applicant will be subcontracting legal services, which of the parties are required to submit 
the following: 

• Letter of Certification and  
• Letter of Training Certification 

 



Just the lead applicant?  The subcontractor?  Or both parties? 
 
A36) The lead applicant. 
 
Q37) On page 10, the RFA allows for VAPs and CACs to hire an attorney via a contract rather than to add 
to their staffing roster. It then goes on to say not to list personal service costs under operating expenses. 
Does this mean that OVS is requiring contracted attorneys to be listed under personal services? 
 
A37) Contracted attorneys should be listed under contractual services.  
 
Q38) Paralegals typically are involved in conducting legal intakes, helping clients’ complete paperwork, 
serving as liaisons between attorneys and clients, etc. Can salaries for paralegals be paid for with this 
funding? 
 
A38) See A4. 
 
Q39) On page 3 of Instructions it is stated that applicants may use an amount up to ten percent (10%) 
De Minimis rate of their Modified Total Direct Costs (MTDC) base. If we subcontract attorneys through 
another agency, and they would like to provide part of the match with their administrative costs, can 
the match of administrative dollars exceed the 10% cap of the MTDC? 
 
A39) The 10% De Minimis rate applies to the grantee and its subcontractors. However, the De Minimis 
rates may only be applied to the value of the subcontract on this grant. This may be used towards 
match. Any match applied toward this contract must be supplied by the OVS contractor. Grantees are 
allowed to use match as a result of a sub-contracting agency; however, the match must be reported 
by the OVS funded agency. 
 
Q40) Current Position Description forms list the OVS ADMINISTRATIVE category as being capped at 7.5% 
of one FTE per program for VOCA performance reports and 7.5% of one FTE per program for fiscal cost 
reporting. Will the same restrictions be placed on this funding?  
 
A40) No. 
 
Q41) Also, would positions performing administrative functions that are paid via contract need to be 
included on the Position Description form? 
 
A41) No.  
 
Q42) On page 6 of the RFA, it states that the New York Crime Victims Legal Help website has an initial 
scope outside of New York City. For the current RFA, is eligibility limited to providers outside of New 
York City or are New York City-based providers eligible for this funding?  
 
A42) New York City-based providers are eligible for this funding. 
 
Q43) At the bottom of page 15, it states: “Applicants may choose to hire an individual to fill the Attorney 
Position OR hire an attorney via a contract to fulfill the Attorney duties.”  Is it allowable to do both?  We 
want to propose hiring an attorney in-house to cover certain legal needs for victims, and to contract 
with a partner agency that has more expertise in other legal areas to hire another attorney to help meet 
those needs for victims.   
 
A43) Yes, it is allowable to do both.  



 
Q44) Is there a salary cap for each individual attorney hired or contracted for? 
 
A44) No. 
 
Q45) Is there a limit on the number of positions that each program can apply for? 
 
A45) No. 
 
Q46) Can clients work with the on-staff attorney in lieu of applying for a court appointed attorney? 
 
A46) Yes. 
 
Q47) Can the attorney assist clients with separations, divorces, and child support? 
 
A47) See A28.  
 
Q48) Can the attorney assist clients with immigration issues and out of state issues (such as custody was 
established in another state or the client is in New York after fleeing DV in another state)? 
 
A48) Yes, if directly related to the crime.  
 
Q49) Can a VAP apply to serve their contracted service area and another VAP service area with shared 
attorney services?  There would be an agreement with the second VAP to provide said services in their 
target area.   
 
A49) Any contracts resulting from this procurement are with the applicant agency only. All 
performance measurement and fiscal cost reports must be reported by the applicant. Applicants are 
not bound in this RFA by any service area limitations of any of the applicant’s existing OVS contracts. 

Q50) Is there a budget cap per application? 
 
A50) No. 
 
Q51) We plan to contract with another entity for an attorney. May we use that entity’s cash and/or in-
kind contribution to satisfy our matching funds requirement as outlined in the RFA? 
 
A51) See A3.  
 
Q52) We will be applying for the RFA for Attorney Services for all four of our funded programs, one of 
which is a Native American Program.  The match requirement is 20% for the programs with the 
exception of the Native American Program which is 5% match.  How would our match requirement be 
calculated if a portion of this grant would be dedicated to our Native American Program as well as our 
other three programs? 
 
A52) Native American tribes or organizations on reservations are now exempt from match 
requirements.  Therefore the 20% match should be calculated on only the programs that are not 
Native American programs. Applicants are encouraged to be sure the applicant itself is a Native 
American tribe or organization on a reservation to be exempt from match requirements.  
 
Q53) Would paralegals, law students, and/or pro-bono attorneys be considered as volunteers even if 



they are paid by the law office we contract with through federal or non-federal funds?  Could we count 
them as match to the grant? 
 
A53) They cannot be considered volunteers if they are being paid for the hours they devote to the 
program. However, their paid time could be counted as match. 
 
Q54) Matching Funds – can this be agency volunteers/interns who are performing all direct services for 
victims and not necessarily just criminal/civil justice system assistance? 
 
A54) Yes, however, match needs to be for VOCA allowable services and cannot be used as match on 
another program. 
 
Q55) Are we able to rent space to house an attorney? 
 
A55) Yes. 
 
 
Q56) Do we have to submit a De Minimis Rate Form?  What is the criteria? 
 
A56) Only if using a De Minimis Rate.  
 
Q57) In the Grant Opportunity Announcement, it is stated that the "anticipated amount of the awards 
will average around $250,000 depending on the # of Attorneys the applicant is looking to fund."  
 
A57) See A5. 
 
Q58) For an organization looking to fund a single full- time position, is there a maximum award for an 
individual organization? 
 
A58) No. 
 
Q59) For an organization looking to fund a single full time position, is a maximum salary for an attorney 
position? is there a maximum for at first year attorney within the grant versus a fifth year attorney at 
the end of the grant? 
 
A59) No, there are no maximum salaries for any positions; however, all salaries need to be justified.  
 
Q60) Similarly, is there a maximum cost that can be attributed to other than personnel costs (OTPS) if 
so, what is it? 
 
A60) No, but all costs must be justified.  
 
Q61) Are there any restrictions for the use of these funds for supportive personnel who will be helping 
to implement the grant - staff working on Fiscal administration, Grants management, Communications 
and Operations? If so, what are they? 
 
A61) No, but the administrative work must be VOCA-related. 
 
Q62) Could this grant be used to support legal support staff in addition to an attorney, such as a legal 
assistant or paralegal? 
 



A62) See A4. 
 
Q63) On page 9 of the RFA, it notes that "Stronger applications will have a significant number of services 
or tasks beyond the minimum requirement", what is the minimum requirement for each of the services 
or tasks? 
 
A63) See section 3.4 of the RFA.  
 
Q 64) If we utilize funds to create a new attorney position, and one of our existing attorneys applies 
for it (in which case we would then hire a new attorney to replace her), is this allowable?  
 
A64) Yes.  As long as a new hire is brought in to replace the existing attorney.  
 
Q65) Can we propose to fund paralegals, legal advocate positions, and/or BIA accredited staff who are 
not attorneys? 
 
A65) Positions other than attorneys can only be funded if an attorney is also funded under this 
contract.  
 
Q66) Can we propose to hire attorneys to handle divorces/matrimonial cases for DV victims?   
 
A66) See A28. 
 
Q67) Please confirm the expected grant awards – is it $250,000 annually? 
 
A67) See A5. 
 
Q68 May the budget include funds for a paralegal for the attorney(s)? 
 
A68) See A4. 
 
Q69 Will funds awarded be in a separate contract OR added to our existing OVS contract? 
 
A69) Separate contracts.  
 
Q 70 Can personnel costs for an advocate, counselor, support staff, etc. serve as match so long as they 
support the attorneys in providing holistic services and/or so long as the match salary is not paid with 
other federal funds? 
 
A70) Yes. 
 
Q71) Are quantitative outputs or performance measures be entered for one year OR for the full five 
years of the project? 
 
A71) Performance measures should for one year.   
 
Q72) Is there any estimate on the time commitments or costs to meet CVLN expectations? 
 
A72) See A35. 
 
Q73) How often will we need to report on progress? 



 
A73) Quarterly. 
 
Q74) Re: RFP Page 19 (Section 6.1 Matching Funds), a question. If an applicant garners and receives a 

donation from an outside entity of regular or intermittent access to needed office and meeting space 

and/or play space for children of survivors to use (under qualified supervision) in support of attorney 

counseling sessions and other grant-related activities, can the monetary value of the provision of such 

space by a third party (such as a Children’s Museum or local business) count toward the 20% match? 

A74) Yes. 

Q75) Three inter-related questions. Page 10 of the RFP indicates “requested funding can also include 

reasonable personal service costs for supervision and administrative costs”. Question: if an applicant 

maintains a negotiated federal indirect cost rate, is the applicant allowed in the Operating Expenses 

budget category of its proposal to indicate this rate and request indirect costs using that negotiated 

rate? Does the answer to this question change in any way(s) based on whether the applicant chooses to 

request funding in the personal services category for supervision and/or administrative costs (e.g., 

fractions of specific supervisory or administrative staffing positions related directly to this grant-funded 

program)? Does the answer change if the applicant plans to supply supervision and/or administrative 

support as part of its 20% match? 

A75) Indirect costs are allowable and should be entered in the operating expenses category. The 

answer depends on the wording of your federal indirect cost rate agreement. If an applicant has an 

approved federal indirect cost rate, it must be used.  

Q76) Are applicants that have a federally negotiated indirect cost rate allowed to charge 
their full negotiated rate or is there a limit of 5% (or other limit), as some other OVS grants have? 
 
A76) Yes, they are allowed to charge the full negotiated rate.  

 
Q77) Would OVS like applicants that have an Indirect Cost Rate Agreement to upload a copy of this in 
the Grantee Document Folder? (If not, where within Grants Gateway should applicants upload this?) 

A77) Yes, upload in the grantee document folder.  

Q78) Will an applicant that has a negotiated Indirect Cost Rate Agreement receive a submission error in 
Grants Gateway if it does not upload the De Minimis Rate Calculation Form (since it does not apply to 
such applicants)? If so, what is the preferred work-around to this? 
 
A78) No, this is not a required form unless applicable.  
 
Q79) If an applicant that is also administering an OVS Case Manager contract establishes protocols by 

which the Case Manager and the hired Attorney sometimes work together (to deliver holistic, integrated 

services) sharing some clients based on these clients’ complementary needs and based on each 

separately funded role’s specialty, how would OVS like the applicant/grantee to project (estimate) and 

ultimately report on certain Performance Measures that might overlap the two collaborating programs. 

For example, if both the Case Manager and the Attorney offer a particular domestic violence survivor 

[different types of] information about the criminal justice process and about victim rights, or immediate 

linkage to the applicant’s internal transportation assistance or childcare assistance servicers, does OVS 



allow the applicant/grantee to project (estimate) / ultimately report (tally) each such instance within 

“the number of times” data for these specific Performance Measures on both contracts? The answer to 

this question will help guide (or potentially halve) our Performance Measure estimates and calculations 

in certain performance categories for this Attorney Services grant. In our agency’s experience, clients 

(survivors) are much more likely to take action(s), such as receiving information, or engaging a resource 

(like an Attorney or transportation assistance), when staff across cooperating programs collaborate and 

coordinate to support the survivor in engaging available resources.  

A79) The attorney would report services provided under this contract and the case manager would 

report any services provided under the case manager contract. If both the attorney and case manager 

each provide services, they should record their services under their respective contracts.  

Q80) For the named optional objectives, tasks, and performance measures, such as "Provide the number 
of times transitional housing will be given," how would OVS prefer applicants to estimate/project the 
number of times?  (For example, if 10 of the victims served by the newly hired Attorney through this 
grant also will receive transitional housing [through another grant], does OVS want applicants to project 
"10 times" for this performance measure?  (If the attorney functions, in his/her legal services role, as 
an informed referral gateway to other available agency services that align with this grant's specific 
optional objectives [e.g., transportation, childcare, housing, etc.], does OVS want applicants 
to count or not count the result of each such anticipated referral and service provision instance 
(regardless of funding source) in the related optional performance measure category(ies)?) 

A80) The person who was actually providing the service should count the service. Just because an 
attorney assisted an individual who was referred for transitional housing, the attorney didn’t provide 
that service and should not count that service.  

Q81) When aligned with victims' needs, are applicants allowed / encouraged to use some Attorney 
Services funding to pay for services named in the various optional objectives and performance measures, 
such as Objective 3 -- Personal Advocacy/Accompaniment, Task 10 "Provide the number of times 
transportation assistance (provided by agency) will be given," or Objective 4 -- Emotional Support or 
Safety Services, Task 5 "Provide the number of times individual counseling will be given"?  (i.e., Can some 
funds be budgeted toward directly providing transportation assistance and/or individual counseling to 
clients who are receiving this grant's core attorney services?) 

A81) Transportation costs and other allowable NPS associated with services provided by staff on this 
contract are allowable.  

Q82)When applicants are projecting / estimating performance measures (integers) for optional 
Objective 3 (Personal Advocacy/Accompaniment), for example "Provide the number of times child or 
dependent care assistance (provided by agency) will be given," does OVS wish applicants to 
provide only a sum-total of such Advocacy/Accompaniment instances that are directly 
funded by this grant, or a sum-total that includes instances funded by other sources but that are 
services to be received (via internal agency referral) by victims/clients who are also served by the 
Attorneys associated with this grant? 

A82) Only the total instances of services directly funded by this grant should be reported. 

Q83) Are applicants permitted to use the “Grantee Document Folder” on Grants Gateway to upload one 
or more supplementary documents that will support an application’s demonstration of need and/or its 
current capacity?  

A83) Yes. 



Q84) If the Attorney hired by this grant funding will perform some work not only at the various office 
addresses of the applicant agency but also in specific courts within the County, does OVS want the 
applicant to list each courthouse as one of the "Project/Site Addresses" (or only list the agency's own 
offices)? 

A84) No, only lists the attorney’s primary location(s). 

Q85) In the Grants Gateway online interface, Program Question 1 and Program Question 2 each provide 
a textbox with a limit of 4,000 characters AND an "Upload-Choose File" button. Question: Are applicants 
allowed to use the "Upload-Choose File" button in the event that they wish to exceed 4,000 characters 
to fully respond to the question? (If so, does OVS prefer that the applicant type only "Please see 
attached" within the textbox (and then attach a PDF with the full response)... or does OVS prefer that 
the first 4,000 characters be typed in the textbox and the remainder be attached as a PDF 
continuation?  (And/or is the "Upload-Choose File" button intended to upload something else for 
Question 1 and Question 2? Please advise.) 

A85) If your narrative will exceed the 4,000 character limit, please upload the entire narrative and in 
the text box write “please see attached”.  

Q86) For the required Volunteer Form, is it acceptable if the volunteer(s) are individual(s) presently 
associated with a variety of programs that an applicant delivers to victim of domestic violence or must 
the volunteer(s) be associated strictly with the to-be-hired attorney and/or existing legal assistance 
services? 

A86) The volunteer only needs to be a volunteer at the applicant’s organization. 

Q87) In the “Positions Description Form template on Grants Gateway, the instructions within the Excel 
template indicate, “Include volunteers and positions funded by OVS and/or match.” Question: If we will 
simply hire one Attorney (full-time) and one part-time administrative (or supervisory role) with OVS 
funds from this opportunity, is it acceptable/preferred to populate only two rows of this table, or are 
applicants required also to list a minimum of one volunteer position, thereby adding/populating 
additional row(s)?  Also, regarding volunteers, on this form, does OVS wish applicants to only include 
those volunteers whose efforts will be encompassed in the 20% match for this program? Question: Does 
OVS wish for applicants to list other positions funded by OVS contracts on this form if not related 
to this Attorney Services funding opportunity?  
 
A87) If the volunteer is being used as match, they must be on the position description form. If they are 
not being used as match, they are not required to be on that form. Only positions related to this 
procurement should be listed on this position description form.  
 
Q88) Page 16 of the RFP indicates, “The purpose of this procurement is to fund new Attorney position(s). 
Under VOCA regulations, applicants may not supplant the Attorney position with an existing employee, 
even if they are currently in an Attorney title.” Question:  If an applicant presently proves some 
(insufficient) attorney services to local victims of domestic violence via contracted partners (who are 
paid by the applicant via a federal Office on Violence against Women grant), is the applicant eligible to 
use these NYS OVS Attorney Services contract funds to hire an on-staff attorney who will significantly 
complement the roles of the federal OVW-funded attorneys and fill specific service legal service gaps for 
local victims that are not addressed by the existing contracted attorneys?  Can the newly hired OVS-
funded attorney work together with the federally funded attorneys to assure complete and holistic legal 
representation across all the victims’ legal needs? In any scenarios where attorneys would share a client, 



each attorney would be focused in their own area of expertise, so there would be no duplication of 
effort or services and no supplanting. 
 
A88) Yes, if the contracted attorney is hired as an on-staff attorney, paid under different funds, to 
perform different services, that is allowable. Yes, the newly hired OVS-funded attorney may work 
together with the federally-funded attorney.  
 
Q89 Can two lawyers, funded by two different sources (one being this grant) share a client to address 
distinctly different legal matters?  For example, if this grant will fund one lawyer to help clients with 
divorce and/or immigration, can another agency-affiliated lawyer -- contracted via a different funder -- 
assist the same client with child custody matters? (We do not believe this would pose any supplanting or 
other potential conflict with OVS rules for this grant, but wish to verify.) 

A89) Yes. 

 Q90) Page 6 of the RFA indicates that “these funds may also be used to allow victims to follow a motion 
to vacate and/or expunge certain convictions based on their status of being a victim.”  If a victim has 
been falsely accused of a crime by her abuser or related entity (a crime such as violence that is actually 
self-defense) could these OVS funds be used to support the victims’ attorney needs relevant to 
addressing the false accusation before a conviction can occur? We understand from RFP page 6 that 
“costs for legal work for criminal defense and tort lawsuits are expressly prohibited,” however, we ask 
this question for clarity because a key gap in attorney services for many survivors of domestic violence is 
attorney assistance in addressing such false accusations (which occur within the context of domestic 
violence). 

A90) Criminal defense is not allowed.  

Q91) In addition to funding an attorney, can the grant money be used to fund a paralegal position to 
support the legal work of the attorney? 

A91) See A4. 

Q92) With respect to the workplan, if our organization already has a grant(s) with OVS to fund social 
workers/case managers who are handling OVS claims info/compensation, does the attorney services 
workplan have to include the OVS compensation application objective? 

A92) No.  

Q93) Does Objective 6 #10, which must be included in the workplan, include accompaniment to Family 
Court for prosecution of Order or Protection or only Criminal Court?  Does this objective cover advocacy 
with NYPD, District Attorney, or advocacy with other law enforcement agencies? 

A93) Yes, interviews are covered under E9; criminal advocacy is covered under E10.  

Q94) Is there a maximum budget amount that can be requested? 

A94) No. 

Q95) Under Objective 6 in the workplan only Order of Protection, custody, visitation, and support are 
listed under the civil legal attorney assistance with family law issues.  Does the funding allow attorneys 
to provide representation in matrimonial/divorce proceedings.  If the funding does allow representation 
on matrimonial/divorce proceedings would this be counted in the family law objective or #11-other legal 
advice and/or counsel 

A95) Yes, covered under family law objective.  



Q96) Does budgeted staff have to be a full FTE or can they be a partial FTE? 

A96) Either is acceptable.  

Q97) Is there a maximum Indirect Cost Rate that can be budgeted. 

A97) No. 

Q98) We assume since these are federal funds we could be required to have a more costly and complex 

OMB-131 audit; we will have additional payroll processing costs; there will also be added financial 

reporting and vouchering costs by our finance staff. Is there an administrative cost cap? If so what is it 

and what is included in it? 

A98) No; however, payroll processing costs are not allowable and administration costs are only 

allowable when they support VOCA administration.  

Q99) Can a victim assistance program partner with their local Legal Aid Society for attorney services?   
For example, the full-time attorney, funded through this grant, would be employed by Legal Aid but 
would be placed, full time, at the victim assistance program. 

A99) Yes. 

Q100) The RFA states that OVS will make available the required 15 hours of training related to holistic 
Victim Law.  In order to project expenses - where will this training be provided and will there be a cost 
for registration?    

A100) See A22.  
 
Q101) On Grants Gateway, there are character limits of 4,000 for the narrative questions, but we are 
uploading separate documents for the first two program specific questions. Are there any word or 
character restrictions for these uploaded documents? 

A101) No. 

Q102) On the application instructions document, p. 4 under the Work Plan, there is a section for 
Proposed Services and Implementation, worth 30%. I do not see a separate place to enter or upload this 
narrative in Grants Gateway. Please clarify. 

A102) See A11. 

Q103) For the annual funding from other sources sheet, if the program to be funded is housed within a 
larger program that provides specific services to DV victims, but the agency as a whole has other 
programs that provide different services to different populations of crime victims, do you want us to 
include the funding sources that cover those other agency programs?  The form refers to the whole 
agency but I don’t know if it really intends to focus on related services for the same target population. 

A103) Please provide all funding sources for the entire agency.  

Q104) Is it permissible to hire paralegals through this RFA? 

A104) See A4. 

Q105. Is coordination and training of Pro Bono (volunteer) attorneys a permitted activity for an attorney 
hired through this RFA? 

A105) Volunteer coordination and training is allowed.  

Q106) Is this funding renewable? 



A106) The contract term is for 5 years with no renewal option under this contract. 

Q107) Is divorce considered an appropriate family law service? 

A107) See A28.  

Q108) Can paralegals be funded to perform direct services under the guidance of an attorney on this 
application such as accompaniment or notification?  

A108) See A4. 

Q109) Can paralegals be funded to provide administrative support to attorneys funded on this 
application? 

A109) See A4.  

Q110) Can this grant cover expenses such as filing fees, subpoenas, Language Line Solutions etc.? 

A110) Yes. 

Q111) Does the indirect cost rate, which will be used for supervision and administrative costs, have to be 
broken out by position? 

A111) No. 

Q112) What is meant specifically by “criminal/civil justice system assistance” and by “criminal 

advocacy/accompaniment”? Are there specific services that are required? 

A112) Criminal/Civil Justice Systems Assistance:  

Refers to actions taken in-person, on the telephone, or in writing, to support, assist, and advocate for 

victims at any stage of the criminal justice process. 

Criminal Advocacy/Accompaniment: Use this category to report criminal advocacy and 

accompaniment services provided by advocates and not listed elsewhere.  Services may include 

criminal court accompaniment, criminal court preparation, post-conviction advocacy, nonmedical 

child forensic exams, etc. 

Q113) Must the integers that we provide for the annual performance measures be multiples of 12 to 

facilitate the development of monthly objectives? (RFP p.9) 

A113) No. 

Q114) The language on performance measures in the application instruction document (p.5) suggests 

that we may define new tasks and that we may choose to provide the number of victims served as a 

performance measure. However, in Grants Gateway, we are not seeing options for doing either as 

everything seems to be pre-defined, and most of the performance measures are set as number of times 

a service is provided. Is there something we are missing? 

A114) No, any additional services provided must conform to the pre-defined task and objectives.  

Q115 If an organization takes the lead, can it submit a collaborative program with other rape crisis 

centers to provide legal services to clients of the lead organization and referrals from its collaborators.  

Are letters of agreement by the collaborating partner needed for such a referral arrangement?   

A115) Any contracts resulting from this procurement are with the applicant agency only. All 

performance measurement and fiscal cost reports must be reported by the applicant.  



Q116) The RFA references legal services for expungements.  Can expungements include legal services to 

assist victims with expunging child welfare charges against them that are a direct result of the domestic 

violence perpetrated against them.  i.e Child welfare neglect cases in family court and NY State Central 

Registry clearances. 

A116) Yes. 

Q117) In the allowable expenses list is “Legal assistance services for non-emergency and emergency 

basis where reasonable and where the need for such services arises as a direct result of the 

victimization” but then later characterize divorces at non-emergency unallowable activities.  These two 

statements seem contradictory.  In our domestic violence legal practice we see divorces as an 

emergency service where the need arises as a direct result of victimization.  We see this restriction as 

creating a complication when for example the case starts in the family court under allowable activity and 

then consolidated to Supreme Court where a divorce is heard.  We would then no longer be permitted 

to represent the client under the OVS grant. 

A117) Divorce is an allowable expense if related to the victimization.  

Q118) For divorces, if we make an application for an Order of Protection in the divorce, would that be a 

permissible use of OVS funds for attorney services.  

A118) Yes.  

Q119Are evaluations that are regularly conducted within the context of court proceedings by 

psychologists, psychiatrists, social workers a permissible reimbursable expense under this RFA i.e expert 

evaluations to prove allegations of domestic violence or forensic evaluations within custody/visitation 

proceedings. 

A119) Yes. 

Q120) Regarding Section 2.1 which states: OVS invites applications for financial assistance to fund new 

attorney(s) positions for currently funded OVS VAPs or CACs. Attorneys are critical to assisting with the 

provision of comprehensive, victim-centered work. Crime victims have both civil legal needs and legal 

needs related to the criminal justice system. 

If an organization already has an attorney on staff, can they still apply for funding to be used to increase 

the reach of a DV Law program and utilize funds to support an additional attorney staff member?   

A120) Yes, as long as it’s a new position.  

Q121) If a position is being funded by monies that is not specific to an attorney role and could be used to 

support other functions at the agency, can an agency apply for this funding if they currently have an 

attorney on staff? 

A121) See A65 and A6. 

Q122) Can the attorney hired through this RFA work on divorce cases for victims of domestic 

violence/stalking/sexual assault?  We are assuming in this question that the victim would be divorcing  

the perpetrator of the crime. 

A122) Yes. 



Q123). The cover in Grants Gateway [Full Announcement Details as attached below] notes that the 

average award is anticipated to be $250,000.  Is that per year or over the five year period? We assume 

annualized at $250,000 per year since $50,000 per year would not be sufficient to hire an attorney. 

A123) See A5. 

Q124) Is there an upper limit to what one organization or consortium of organizations can apply for? 

A124) No. 

125) The RFA indicates that the funding must be allocated for new Attorney positions [pg. 5 Section 2.1 

Introduction, pg. 10 Section 3.4(5) Project Budget and pg. 16 Section 5.6.1 Funding Purpose and Eligible 

Costs] We assume this means positions that are new to the Crime Victim advocacy work and contract, 

not necessarily new to the organization. In other words, could existing attorney staff working in 

unrelated areas be eligible to apply internally for these new positions? 

A125) See A64. 

Q126) While the anticipated services call for attorney staff, can funding be used to support paralegal or 

other non-attorney positions dedicated to the work of the attorney and the project, for example, 

outreach workers and paralegals assisting with client education, community education and client 

support services? [pg. 10 Section 3.4(6) Budget Narrative] 

A126) See A4. 

Q127) Can funding be used to provide training and technical assistance to other attorneys in legal 

services or crime victim programs who may benefit from targeted substantive law support in their work 

with crime victims? 

A127) See A27. 

Q128) Can funding be used to provide assistance in a group setting or legal clinic supporting Know Your 

Rights sessions or targeted substantive law issues (for example, how to address unemployment issues or 

eviction challenges as a crime victim)? 

A128) Yes, as long as they’re not preventative.  

Q129) We assume since these are federal funds we could be required to have a more costly and complex 

OMB-131 audit; we will have additional payroll processing costs; there will also be added financial 

reporting and vouchering costs by our finance staff. Is there an administrative cost cap? If so what is it 

and what is included in it? 

A129) No; however, payroll processing costs are not allowable and administration costs are only 

allowable when they support VOCA administration.  

 

 














































































